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A Brief History of the
Defense Mapping Agency

The new organization became operational July 1972.

N NOVEMBER 5, 1971, a Presidential

Memorandum directed the consolida-
tion of Department of Defense mapping,
charting and geodesy operations (MC&G).

The Defense Mapping Agency (DMA) was
then established by Department of Defense
(poDp) directives dated January 1, 1972, as
a separate agency reporting to the Secretary
of Defense through the Joint Chiefs of
Staff. DMA was assigned the mission of
providing mapping, charting and geodesy
supportto the Secretary of Defense, the Mili-
tary Departments, the Joint Chiefs of Staff,
and other pop components and organiza-
tions. bMA was also directed to be opera-
tional by July 1, 1972. In conformance with
these directives, a consolidation of most
mapping organizations within the Military
Departments resulted in the pyMA becoming
one of the largest Department of Defense
agencies. DMA thereby also became one of
the largest mapping agencies in the free
world. Presently, the bDMA has almost
9,000 military and civilian personnel and
currently an annual budget of about $160
million.

Those organizations incorporated into
DMA made up about 80 percent of Depart-
ment of Defense mapping, charting and geo-
detic resources. Among them were the
Mc&G staff of the Defense Intelligence
Agency (DiaMC); the Army Topographic
Command, less its research and develop-
ment unit and troop command; the chart
production, nautical information and dis-
tribution activities of the Naval Oceanogra-
phic Office (hydrographic survey and ocean-
ographic activities will still be accomplished
by NAVOCEANO which remains with Navy);
the Aeronautical Chart and Information
Center of the U.S. Air Force; the Inter Amer-
ican Geodetic Survey (1aGS) formerly of the
U.S. Army Forces, Southern Command; and
the Department of Topography of the U.S.
Army Engineer School. The 1st Geodetic
Survey Squadron and the MCc&G elements
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of the 15th Reconnaissance Technical Squad-
ron, former U.S. Air Force units, were also
allotted to pMA and have been assigned to
the bMma Aerospace Center.

These essential services have been re-
grouped by DMA into five Components (Fig-
ure 1). They are the bma Aerospace Center,
St. Louis, Missouri; the bmMA Hydrographic
Center, Suitland, Maryland; the bDMA
Topographic Center, Washington, D. C.; the
Defense Mapping School, Fort Belvoir,
Virginia; and the Inter American Geodetic
Survey, Canal Zone. Each of these Compo-
nents has its own background of success.

The Defense Mapping Agency Aerospace
Center (DMAAC) is an outgrowth of the
Aeronautical Chart and Information Center
(acic), of the U.S. Air Force, which was
created in 1928. It was then called the Map
Unit and was under the Chief of the Infor-
mation Division, Army Air Corps, in the
Munitions Building, Washington, D. C.
With the progression of aviation, new de-
mands were placed on the organization for
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more sophisticated aerial charts in an ever
increasing volume. During January of 1942,
the Map Unit came under the Office of the
Chief of the Army Air Corps, and moved
from the Munitions Building to Bolling
Field, Washington, D. C. It was renamed
the Map-Chart Division. By March of that
year, the strength had increased to 42 of-
ficers and 142 civilians. In April 1944, the
Division was redesignated the Aeronautical
Chart Service under Headquarters, Army Air
Forces. In August the organization was de-
signated USAF Aeronautical Chart and Infor-
mation Center (ACIC) and the Command Sec-
tion transferred from Washington, D. C. to
Second and Arsenal Streets, St. Louis, Mis-
souri. By July of 1960, it was a separate
agency operating under Headquarters, U.S.
Air Force.

At the time ACIC was assimilated into the
DMA organization, it had detachments lo-
cated throughout the world—Canal Zone,
Alaska, Germany, England, Hawaii, Philip-
pines, Okinawa, Japan, and Southeast
Asia. These squadrons and detachments
served all military users of aeronautical
charts and flight information to assure the
production and distribution of products to
satisfy their needs. The Aeronautical Chart
and Information Center's production pro-
grams were then, and still are, under the
present DMA organization, divided into four
major elements: navigation and planning
charts, flight information publications, air
target materials, and special products. The
Navigation and Planning Series include
Joint Operational Graphics, Tactical Pilot-
age Charts, Operational Navigation Charts,
Jet Navigation Charts, Global Navigation
Charts and planning charts, Loran Charts,
Missile Planning Charts, and DOD weather
charts. Flight Information Publications
(FLIPS) are produced for planning, enroute
and terminal phases of military aircraft
operations for the entire free world.

The Defense Mapping Agency Hydrogra-
phic Center (DMAHC) evolved from the
Depot of Charts and Instruments es-
tablished by the Navy in 1830 to collect and
assume responsibility for the care and issue
of charts and instruments to the Fleet.
To supplement the inadequate supply of
foreign charts available, a lithographic press
was obtained for the Depot in 1837, and the
first U.S. Navy nautical chart was published
that year.

In succeeding years the Depot became
part of the Bureau of Ordnance and Hydrog-
raphy. It became known successively as the
Depot of Charts and Instruments, National
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Observatory, the Naval Observatory, the Hy-
drographic Office, andthe U.S. Naval Obser-
vatory and Hydrographical Office.

In 1866 Congress passed an act es-
tablishing a Hydrographic Office. The newly
organized Office was separated from the Ob-
servatory and expanded to include responsi-
bility for providing charts, sailing directions,
and manuals of instructions for the use of all
vessels of the United States, and for the
benefit and use of navigators in general.

As naval aviation began to develop, the
Office was assigned responsibility for pro-
viding the special air navigation charts
required for carrier and long-range patrol
aircraft. World War II and follow-on global
Fleet operations generated new require-
ments for knowledge of the broad ocean
areas and a Division of Oceanography was
formed in 1946. Recognizing the increas-
ingly important support role of oceanogra-
phy both in the Office and the Fleet, the
name of the Office was changed in 1962 to
the U.S. Naval Oceanographic Office and the
primary mission was expanded to include
oceanographic products and data required
by naval operations. It remained in this
status until the transfer of its chart and nau-
tical information production and distribution
functions to the Defense Mapping Agency.
The Oceanographic Office continues to
operate under the U.S. Navy to carry out
the oceanographic endeavor and to perform
hydrographic surveys in support of DMA
charting programs.

The Defense Mapping Agency Topogra-
phic Center (DMATC) had its beginning in a
warehouse located at Fort Leslie J. McNair,
Washington, D. C., where space was set
aside in 1910 to accommodate a reproduc-
tion unit and lithographic school. These
combined elements formed the Central Map
Reproduction Plant (cMRP). With the advent
of World War I, cMRP was reorganized and
expanded, and in 1917 was renamed the
Engineer Reproduction Plant (ERP).

With the coming of World War II, the
demand for maps soon out-stripped the facil-
ities of ERP. In 1942, it was redesignated the
Army Map Service (AMS) and provided with
new Luildings of special design at Brook-
mont, Maryland, just over the District of
Columbia line. By 1945, aMs, with sev-
eral offices throughout the country, em-
ployed 3,500 people embracing many spe-
cialized skills and areas of knowledge.

In September 1968 the U.S. Army Topo-
graphic Command (TOPOCOM) was created.
This included the Army Map Service, the
Engineer Topographic Laboratories at Fort
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Belvoir,and the topographic portion of Topo-
graphic and Military Engineering Director-
ate, Office, Chief of Engineers. Under
TOPOCOM, five major subordinate commands
were established: the U.S. Army Engineer
Topographic  Production Center, Data
Center, Troop Command, Engineer Topo-
graphic  Laboratories, and Distribution
Center. At the same time, the Army also es-
tablished the function of Topographer of the
Army on the staff of the Chief of Engineers,
with this responsibility being delegated to
the Commanding General of ToPocOM as a
dual function.

When the Defense Mapping Agency was
formed in 1972 some of TOPOCOM, except for
the Engineer Topographic Laboratories and
the Troop Command, became part of it and
was designated the Defense Mapping
Agency Topographic Center,

The Defense Mapping School (DMS) traces
its lineage back to the spring of 1918 when
the School of Surveying, Map Reproduction
and Ranging was opened at Camp A. A.
Humphreys, now Fort Belvoir, Virginia. The
purpose of this School was to train enlisted
men and officers in mapmaking. It became
part of the U.S. Army Engineer School and
remained a department of that School until it
joined pyMa on July 1, 1972. Now, DMS
is charged with the expanded mission of
providing formal military education in the
mapping sciences to personnel of the De-
partment of Defense,

The Inter American

Geodetic Survey
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(1AGS) was originated in 1945 by President
Truman toward the end of World War 1I.
At that time, he directed the War Depart-
ment to establish long-range mapping and
charting relating to the Caribbean Area,
Central and South America. To carry out this
mission, the Caribbean Defense Command,
which was assigned the responsibility,
issued an initial directive on April 15, 1946,
forming the Inter American Geodetic Survey
(IAGS). Over the ensuing years, the organiza-
tion experienced a number of changes that
finally culminated in its becoming a part of
the Defense Mapping Agency.

To coordinate this complex organization,
the smallest feasible headquarters staff has
been assembled in the Washington, D. C.
area. Of the total 9,000 people authorized,
only 190 make up the headquarters staff.
This figure of slightly over 2 percent of the
total, is the smallest such ratio of any De-
fense agency.

The Defense Mapping Agency has been
fully operational since July 1, 1972. Ob-
viously, these relatively few months have
not been a substantial springboard from
which to launch overly optimistic predic-
tions. On the other hand, if early results offer
any vyardstick, DMA people believe that
within a year the Defense Mapping Agency
will have fully justified its existence in terms
of increased production for the dollars in-
vested, people and facilities more effec-
tively made use of, and responsiveness to
the requirements of the U.S. military forces.
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